

Doctoral School of International Relations and Political Science

### THESIS SUMMARY

to the PhD dissertation of

### Gábor Tamás Molnár

titled

The institutionalization of professional communities: Insights from studies of professionals in Hungary

### Supervisor:

### Károly Mike, PhD

associate professor

Budapest, 2022

### **Department of Public Policy and Management**

### **THESIS SUMMARY**

to the PhD dissertation of

### Gábor Tamás Molnár

titled

The institutionalization of professional communities: Insights from studies of professionals in Hungary

### **Supervisor:**

### Károly Mike, PhD

associate professor

© Gábor Tamás Molnár

### Table of Contents

1.	Research background and justification of the topic	4
	Motivation and relevance	
	The goals of my research	5
	Theoretical and empirical approaches	
2.	Research questions, ambitions & methodology	
	Chapter 2: A critical review of the roles of business associations	
	Chapter 3: Testing the transaction supporting role of business	
	associations	8
	Chapter 4: A case study of the transaction supporting role of a	
	professional community	9
	Chapter 5: A case study of the institutional dynamics of a professional	
	community	9
	Chapter 6: Approaching the identity construction of a professional	
	community through membership and performance	. 10
	Case selection rationale	. 10
3.	Summary of findings	. 11
	Chapter 2	. 11
	Chapter 3	. 12
	Chapter 4	. 12
	Chapter 5	
	Chapter 6	
4.	Conclusions & contributions	. 14
	i) What do professional communities contribute?	
	ii) How do professional community institutions fulfil their roles?	
	iii) How do professional community institutions develop?	. 15
5.	Main references	
6.	List of own (or co-authored) publications related to the topic	21

The work summarized here is a portfolio dissertation consisting of five peerreviewed articles (Chapters 2-6). The first chapter of the dissertation introduces the questions and approaches, situating them in an overarching research program. The final (7th) chapter summarizes the main results of the studies before drawing conclusions from the research program's perspective. This summary follows a similar structure, beginning with the overarching research program, then introducing each chapter's contributions, before summarizing the main conclusions of the dissertation.

## 1. Research background and justification of the topic

### Motivation and relevance

The idea for this research project came from the widespread observation that professionals tend to organize their economic and political activities jointly, not only through private economic organizations (such as firms) but through forming professional communities. Although membership in these communities is costly, a significant part of professionals takes steps to create and maintain them. I wanted to better understand *what was the rationale behind these decisions to institutionalize professional communities*.

The collective action of professionals is a classical topic of public choice studies, as these institutions are typical elements of interest representation and lobbying, connecting private actors to governments (Olson, 1971). The internal governance of these communities is also a fruitful topic for political science scholars (Ostrom, 2010). The study of professional communities is also relevant to scholars of public policy and governance, as they provide institutional solutions to governance problems.

Despite their importance, our scientific knowledge of these institutions is somewhat lacking and mostly fragmented. In political science, the theories of collective action and governance both build upon the existence of organised interest groups but have very little to say about the way potential groups become institutionalised, coherent communities, or about their motivations in doing so. This also leads theories of governance to often neglect the elements of professional communities which are not related to policy making.

The practical relevance of the topic comes from the widespread nature of professional community institutions. A more accurate evaluation of these institutions from the perspective of economic development might form the basis of supporting or opposing their development for both economic actors and policymakers. My research also aims to explore the institutional and contextual factors which contribute to the successful institutionalisation of professional communities. These results could be useful for both potential and existing professional communities as well as policymakers looking to design or facilitate governance solutions involving these communities.

### The goals of my research

There are three layers to this puzzle with three corresponding questions. The first concerns (i) *what these professional community institutions contribute* to their communities that make them willing to spend resources on their maintenance. Second, to truly understand what professional communities contribute to our societies, we also need to look beyond the *what* question and turn to (ii) *how they are able to contribute* in possibly beneficial or detrimental ways. Third, we need to understand (iii) *how these institutions develop* to achieve the above.

(i) Different strands of scholarship have distinctly different views of the functionality of professional community institutions. Scholars working in the traditions of public choice see these communities as vehicles of redistributive rent-seeking. New institutional economists approach them as an additional level of transaction enabling institutions, complementing the private and public orders. Organizational studies and governance scholarship often sees professional community institutions as community-level providers of shared informational and interest representative services.

We know from empirical studies that professional communities can institutionalize in various ways to contribute to various social and economic goals but studying when and how they do so require us to dig deeper. This dissertation is a collection of studies that aim to develop existing theories in a way that enables us to better account for some key institutional issues surrounding professional communities. The first overarching ambition of my research is to move beyond descriptive accounts of *what* professional communities do, building explanatory theories of *when* and *how* they might contribute to governance.

(ii) Approaching the second overarching question of *How do professional community institutions contribute?* requires us to build upon the theories on specific roles, situating professional community institutions in structures of governance. The main ambition of the dissertation connected to this question is theory-building about a fundamental role of professional community institutions, that is enabling transactions.

(iii) The third overarching question concerns *How do professional community institutions develop?*. This piece of the puzzle also has a rather fragmented scientific literature. Institutional economics and political science both rely on the theory of collective action as a point of departure, complemented by the exchange-based theories of institutional logics, transaction cost theory, and population ecology of organizations.

We have a few competing propositions on when each theoretical perspective would be more relevant in explaining institutionalization and a lot of empirical evidence on some typical institutions of professional communities. This dissertation intends to clarify a few elements of this fragmented field, and to suggest ways in which some theories could be elaborated on the way toward a potential synthesis.

### Theoretical and empirical approaches

Most political science and economics scholarship on the institutionalization of professional communities focuses on samples of individual formal organisations, mainly professional associations. This focus on formal institutions for data availability purposes is reasonable, and most of the studies in this dissertation (except for Chapter Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található.) also begin with it. However, all empirical chapters (Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található.-Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található.) attempt to demonstrate the applicability of approaches where the broader institutional context of associations is also included in the analysis, to develop a more nuanced and comprehensive understanding of professional community institutionalization. Chapter Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található. offers a complete crosssection of governance structures for a single role of communities. Chapter Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található. analysed the institutionalization dynamics of a community at three connected layers of membership, associations, and systems of associations. Chapter Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található. shifts the focus completely from formal institutions to the dynamics of the underlying professional community. While the external validity of our conclusions is accordingly limited, the main intention was to develop and demonstrate the applicability of partially novel approaches.

### 2. Research questions, ambitions & methodology

## Chapter 2: A critical review of the roles of business associations

Inspired by the contradictory empirical results on the functionality of professional community institutions, Chapter 2 serves to set the stage for later

chapters by providing a traditional literature review of our knowledge of business associations. It asks three questions: (1) What are the economic roles of BAs? (2) How are BAs institutionalized? (3) What drives BAs to engage in socially beneficial or harmful activities?.

Its main ambitions are to provide structure to our knowledge of the functionality puzzle based on new institutional economics and to test which theories of professional community institutionalization seem to hold up in the face of growing empirical evidence. It also contributes to theory-building, by analytically separating economic roles, associational functions, and the normative question of economic efficiency.

## Chapter 3: Testing the transaction supporting role of business associations

Chapter 3 is a joint quantitative effort together with Károly Mike and István Boza, seeking to test hypotheses on whether specific groups of professional community institutions – in our case business associations –fulfil a transaction supporting role. It asks the questions (1) Do members of BAs perceive them as effective in increasing the credibility of their members?; (2) Do members of BAs trust in the contractual commitments of their business partners more compared to non-members?; and (3) Are members of BAs better able to engage with business partners from outside their personal and local networks?.

The study utilizes detailed member-level survey data to provide novel quantitative results on what a central group of professional community institutions, business associations provide to their members. The study relies on a representative survey of Hungarian SMEs, utilizing multiple regression methods with members as units of observation. The rarely found micro-level approach allows for the statistical control of various alternative factors explaining transactional strategies and their success.

## Chapter 4: A case study of the transaction supporting role of a professional community

Chapter **Hiba!** A hivatkozási forrás nem található. adopts a qualitative, singlecase approach, which enables it to dig deep into the puzzle of how professional communities are institutionalized for a single role, that of enabling market transactions. It asks the questions (1) What transaction-enabling roles do associations fulfil within a professional community? and (2) What factors influence whether an association plays a role in the transactional relationship between two businesses? The corresponding research ambition was explanatory and hypothesis-generating.

The study situated business associations in the complex governance structures of transactions on which professionals rely in supporting their relationships. The novelty of its approach was to study how different institutions interact in the governance structures of contracts. Based on document analysis and nineteen semi-structured interviews, it studied not just how professional community institutions could contribute, but also whether and how they do it from the stakeholders' perspective.

## Chapter 5: A case study of the institutional dynamics of a professional community

Chapter **Hiba!** A hivatkozási forrás nem található. zooms in on the factors influencing the development paths and relations between associations, looking to clarify alternative theories and their relationships. It asks the questions (1) What factors explain the different patterns of institutionalization of professional associations within a professional community? and (2) What factors explain the patterns of cooperation between professional associations within a professional community?, seeking to address which elements of professional community institutionalization are explained by exchange-based theories and which by intellectual debate-based theories.

The chapter had descriptive and explanatory theory-building ambitions, for which a complementary theories congruence analysis approach was selected, with the single case of the Hungarian logistics community. Besides providing a first scientific account of the complex associational system of the case, it used document analysis and fifteen semi-structured stakeholder interviews to uncover the dynamics of institutionalization.

# Chapter 6: Approaching the identity construction of a professional community through membership and performance

Chapter **Hiba!** A hivatkozási forrás nem található. is a joint effort with Gabriella Ilonszki in connecting the research on political science as a scientific field to the study of professional communities. It adopts a slightly different approach from the previous case studies, as it tackles the questions of (1) How did the political science community expand during the last three decades? and (2) How did the publication performance of the professional community evolve over the last three decades?

The chapter starts from a population ecology perspective to study Hungarian political scientists based on data on individuals and publications, demonstrating that identity-building – and the related institutionalization – of a professional community can be fruitfully approached from below. Beyond testing descriptive expectations, a major methodological and empirical accomplishment of Chapter **Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található.** was the operationalization of the different groups of professional community members and stakeholders based on professional background, formal organizational position, and performance.

### Case selection rationale

My research ambitions coincided with two European Union research projects, which provided the impetus and resources for most of this endeavour: COST Action CA15207 on the *Professionalization and Social Impact of European* 

*Political Science*, and EFOP-3.6.1-16-2016-00013 on '*Institutional developments for intelligent specialization at the Székesfehérvár Campus of Corvinus University of Budapest*'. Both projects required data collection on Hungarian professional communities.

We selected cases from among national professional communities and their members in Hungary from 1990 to 2018. Since most studies in the literature on professional community institutionalization have focused either on highly developed (mostly Anglo-Saxon) countries or post-soviet contexts, studying Hungarian communities addresses an empirical research gap.

The quantitative approach of Chapter 3 required a large, representative sample, which was provided by a survey of Hungarian SMEs from 2016, while the case studies in Chapters 4-6 analysed three Hungarian professional communities: seed producers, logistics professionals, and political scientists. The selection of these communities applied four main criteria: data availability, the existence of formal community institutions, the presence of (and partial success in responding to) major challenges to the community, and the differences in their institutional configurations. To sum up, we selected diverse cases from comparable Hungarian professional communities, where the phenomena of interest could be observed.

### 3. Summary of findings

### Chapter 2

1. Since all of the proposed economic roles of BAs can involve activities linked to the private order and the public order, and all of the economic roles can contribute to both value-creating and redistributive rent-seeking, the widespread approach in the literature which distinguishes between the beneficial, market-supporting, and the harmful, rent-seeking roles of associations is not justified. 2. As beneficial contributions from each of the economic roles of BAs are possible at each of their levels of institutionalization, Doner & Schneider's (2000) proposition that a certain level of institutional strength is needed for a business association to be able to fulfil beneficial, "market-supporting" economic roles is not supported by the evidence.

3. The socially beneficial or harmful rent-seeking orientation of BA activities is explained by the institutional incentives created by private-order (market pressures, organizational competition, and internal governance) and public-order (political accountability, monitoring) actors.

### Chapter 3

1. The majority of BAs in our sample institutionalize transaction supporting functions such as moral and professional selection and control of members, business dispute resolution, and information sharing.

2. Business associations are important elements of the institutional framework behind contractual relationships. Several functions of BAs contribute to perceived internal and external trust in business partners.

3. Our results do *not* support the view, at least in this context, that business associations in general increase credible commitment among business partners. However, BAs *with functions relevant* to contract enforcement seem to enable a firm to reduce the threat of opportunism with any business partner.

4. BA membership does not facilitate the creation of new partnerships with previously unknown or geographically distant partners but might facilitate building trust in them once the relationship is established.

### Chapter 4

1. There is a trade-off between relying on professional community institutions and relying on long-term relational contracting (or integration) for the governance of contractual relations.

2. There is a trade-off between relying on professional community institutions and relying on market reputational mechanisms for the governance of contractual relations.

3. Reliance on market intermediaries can both complement and substitute for reliance on professional community institutions for the governance of contractual relations.

4. The scope and type of government involvement in the governance of contractual relations determine the role of professional community institutions, as it both enables them and relies on them throughout the policy process.

### Chapter 5

1. The theory linking the logic of membership to lower layers and the logic of influence to higher layers of institutionalization has found partial support. However, the logic of influence is more significant than theoretically expected in lower institutional layers and early on in the institutionalisation process.

2. In the later stages of associational development competition for members along the logic of membership and the logic of influence have both pushed them towards expanding their functional and membership domains. Contrary to our theoretical expectations, differentiation did not increase as the community evolved, as associations became more similar instead.

3. At the layer of associational integration, the logic of influence dominated as expected, but did not result in ever more extensive coordination. The uncertain and unstable institutionalization of the profession within the government was reflected by the institutionalization within the community.

4. The remaining patterns of differentiation were largely explained by differences in the institutionalization of intellectual debate, which proved to be more persistent than functional and membership profiles. The construction of a professional community's identity and its institutionalisation are parallel, linked processes.

### Chapter 6

1. In terms of membership, the identity of political science has become more compact. Overall, it seems that while there is an identifiable and increasingly clear professional community of Hungarian political scientists, the discipline is still open to contributions from outside.

2. The increased international component of academic output provides international visibility for the profession, and the increasing share of quality publications clearly adds to its status, and possibly its acknowledged institutional position.

3. However, publication performance and international recognition are very unevenly shared among members of the profession, which could also reflect uneven access to resources as well as a lack of internal connections within the community. Its integration into European political science is through the connections and activities of a small group of high-performing professionals in central institutions.

4. To better understand developments in newcomer professional communities, we need a combination of the performance- and personnel-centred, and institutional perspectives, which would allow the study of the relations between professional institutionalisation and the development of underlying professional networks.

### 4. Conclusions & contributions

### i) What do professional communities contribute?

a) The critical review of the literature in Chapter Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található. found that simple answers to the question of what professional communities provide are likely to be contradictory or wrong. That is why our subsequent empirical analysis focused on one role at a time, assessing the evidence of its existence and mechanisms instead of trying to compare multiple roles. b) Professional community institutions are important elements of the framework of governance in Hungary. Their transaction-enabling roles seem to be consistently relevant complements to more widespread private- and public-order institutions.

c) There are important differences between different kinds of associations regarding their effects on members, conditional on what functions and mechanisms they can institutionalize.

### ii) How do professional community institutions fulfil their roles?

a) Professional community institutions are important, but often noncentral elements of governance for SMEs and professionals in the seed industry and logistics communities. Although many of their functions have marketized private substitutes, their information sharing and professional control elements are significant in governance.

b) Both informal networks (along with their norms) and formalized private-order solutions (organizational hierarchies and relational contracts) matter as institutional alternatives to community-level institutionalization.

c) Professional community institutions can also enable private-order alternatives, contributing indirectly to successful governance, even if they lack strong formal sanctions.

### iii) How do professional community institutions develop?

a) We cannot explain the institutionalization of professional communities without including public sector elements in our analyses. There seems to be a mutual reliance between private and public-order mechanisms, where the two kinds of institutions co-evolve. Public sector organizations often rely on the voluntary collective action of professionals to design and implement more effective policies. In doing so, they provide incentives (through conditional resources and access) and constraints (through regulatory decisions) for the development of professional communities. Policymakers and governmental actors can be part of the professional community, which happened in both the seed industry and logistics cases. These intensive two-way relations are key to understanding professional community institutionalization, possibly trumping Olsonian bottom-up considerations of collective action such as group size and heterogeneity.

b) To understand the institutionalization and social roles of professional communities, we need to analytically distinguish and connect their instrumental and intellectual sides. Who participates and how in the underlying professional debates is determined by the communities' institutions, which are in turn influenced by intellectual developments and differences. Two main dimensions of intellectual differences with major institutional consequences were identified.

c) There can be various conceptualizations of a professional community's identity with their corresponding claims to representation. Which individuals and organizations constitute the seed industry, logistics, or political science community is not objectively defined, and different members have different groups in mind whom they are willing to consider parts of the same community. While these identities tend to strongly overlap, their differences can be important constraints and drivers of institutional differentiation and integration. The case studies point to internationalization as one of the key identity aspects, as professional networks and organizations are increasingly international.

d) The second key intellectual difference concerns the rules of consultation, which define acceptable arguments and their articulation within the community. The main division here is between a more gradual, scientific approach toward professionally optimal solutions, and a more pragmatic, streamlined interest-reconciliation approach. Differences in these institutions and how they align with policymaking processes can be important factors for a professional communities' success in interest representation and internal institutionalization.

Chapter Hiba! A hivatkozási forrás nem található. provided empirical e) and methodological contributions to the study of institutionalization. It is the first step in a research program that intends to extend the quantitative, data-driven approach of the population ecology strand of literature to the layer of professional community members. It demonstrates that meaningful conclusions can be drawn regarding the identity and dynamics of a community from this approach, which offers multiple potential benefits for future scholarship. Going beyond the formal organizational layer in data collection and analysis allows for the study of changes in the membership and the internal structures of cooperation that might not be reflected by formal organizational membership. These linkages may be used to analyse professional networks, which could then be connected to the study of institutions, allowing us to better understand how professional community institutions contribute to the performance of community members (question ii.), and how informal structures and formal institutions co-evolve (question iii.).

### 5. Main references

Barnett, M. L. (2013). One Voice, But Whose Voice? Exploring What Drives Trade Association Activity. Business & Society, 52(2), 213-244. https://doi.org/10.1177/0007650309350211 Bennett, R. J. (1996). Can Transaction Cost Economics Explain Voluntary Chambers of Commerce? Journal of Institutional and Theoretical Economics, 152(4), 654–680. Bennett, R. J. (2000). The Logic of Membership of Sectoral Business Associations. Review of Social Economy, 58(1), 17–42. https://doi.org/10.1080/003467600363093 Blatter, J., & Haverland, M. (2012). Congruence Analysis. In J. Blatter & M. Haverland (Eds.), Designing Case Studies: Explanatory Approaches in Small-N *Research* (pp. 144–204). Palgrave Macmillan UK. https://doi.org/10.1057/9781137016669\_4 Caza, B. B., & Creary, S. (2016). The construction of professional identity. In A. Wilkinson, D. Hislop, & C. Coupland (Eds.), Perspectives on Contemporary Professional Work (pp. 259–285). Edward Elgar Publishing.

https://doi.org/10.4337/9781783475582.00022

Doner, R. F., & Schneider, B. R. (2000). Business Associations and Economic Development: Why Some Associations Contribute More Than Others. *Business and Politics*, 2(03), 261–288. https://doi.org/10.2202/1469-3569.1011

Eisenhardt, K. M., & Graebner, M. E. (2007). Theory Building From Cases: Opportunities And Challenges. *The Academy of Management Journal*, *50*(1), 25–32. https://doi.org/10.5465/amj.2007.24160888

Eisfeld, R., & Pal, L. A. (2010). Political Science in Central-East Europe and the Impact of Politics: Factors of Diversity, Forces of Convergence. *European Political Science*, *9*(2), 223–243. https://doi.org/10.1057/eps.2010.11

Ellickson, R. C. (1991). Order without law: How neighbors settle disputes. Harvard University Press.

Greif, A. (2008). Commitment, Coercion and Markets: The Nature and Dynamics of Institutions Supporting Exchange. In C. Ménard & M. M. Shirley (Eds.), *Handbook of New Institutional Economics* (pp. 727–786). Springer Berlin Heidelberg. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-540-69305-5\_29

Gunningham, N., & Rees, J. (1997). Industry Self-Regulation: An Institutional Perspective. *Law & Policy*, *19*(4), 363–414. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9930.t01-1-00033

Héritier, A., & Eckert, S. (2009). Self-Regulation by Associations: Collective Action Problems in European Environmental Regulation. *Business and Politics*, *11*(1), 1–22. https://doi.org/10.2202/1469-3569.1250

Johnson, S., McMillan, J., & Woodruff, C. (2002). Courts and Relational Contracts. *Journal of Law, Economics, & Organization, 18*(1), 221–277. JSTOR. https://doi.org/10.1093/jleo/18.1.221

Jokić, M., Mervar, A., & Mateljan, S. (2019). The development of political science in Central and Eastern Europe: Bibliometric perspective, 1996–2013. *European Political Science*, *18*(3), 491–509. https://doi.org/10.1057/s41304-018-0191-6

Lang, A., Ronit, K., & Schneider, V. (2008). From Simple to Complex: An Evolutionary Sketch of Theories of Business Association. In J. R. Grote, A. Lang, & V. Schneider (Eds.), *Organized Business Interests in Changing Environments: The Complexity of Adaptation* (pp. 17–41). Palgrave Macmillan UK. https://doi.org/10.1057/9780230594913\_2

Larrain, M., & Prüfer, J. (2015). Trade Associations, Lobbying, and Endogenous Institutions. *Journal of Legal Analysis*, 7(2), 467–516. https://doi.org/10.1093/jla/lav009

Lowery, D., Gray, V., Anderson, J., & Newmark, A. J. (2004). Collective Action and the Mobilization of Institutions. *The Journal of Politics*, 66(3), 684–705. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1468-2508.2004.00272.x

McMillan, J., & Woodruff, C. (2000). Private Order under Dysfunctional Public Order. *Michigan Law Review*, *98*(8), 2421–2458. JSTOR. https://doi.org/10.2307/1290349

Ménard, C. (2004). The Economics of Hybrid Organizations. *Journal of Institutional and Theoretical Economics (JITE) / Zeitschrift Für Die Gesamte Staatswissenschaft*, 160(3), 345–376.

https://doi.org/10.1628/0932456041960605

Mény, Y. (2010). Political Science as a Profession. *European Political Science*, 9, S11–S21. https://doi.org/10.1057/eps.2010.36

Metz, T., & Jäckle, S. (2017). Patterns of Publishing in Political Science Journals: An Overview of Our Profession Using Bibliographic Data and a Co-Authorship Network. *PS: Political Science & Politics*, *50*(1), 157–165. https://doi.org/10.1017/S1049096516002341

Mike, K. (2017). The intellectual orders of a market economy. *Journal of Institutional Economics*, *13*(4), 899–915.

https://doi.org/10.1017/S1744137417000029

Mike, K., & Kiss, G. (2018). Combining formal and informal contract enforcement in a developed legal system: A latent class approach. *Journal of Institutional Economics*, 2018, 1–17.

https://doi.org/10.1017/S1744137418000425

Murrell, P. (2003). Firms facing new institutions: Transactional governance in Romania. *Journal of Comparative Economics*, *31*(4), 695–714.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jce.2003.08.002

Murrell, P. (2008). Institutions and Firms in Transition Economies. In C. Ménard & M. M. Shirley (Eds.), *Handbook of New Institutional Economics* 

(pp. 667–699). Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-540-69305-5\_27

North, D. C. (1990). *Institutions, institutional change, and economic performance*. Cambridge University Press.

https://doi.org/10.1017/CBO9780511808678.

Olson, M. (1971). *The Logic of Collective Action*. Harvard University Press. Ostrom, E. (2005). *Understanding institutional diversity*. Princeton University Press.

Ostrom, E. (2010). Beyond Markets and States: Polycentric Governance of Complex Economic Systems. *American Economic Review*, *100*(3), 641–672. https://doi.org/10.1257/aer.100.3.641

Polanyi, M. (2010). *The logic of liberty: Reflections and rejoinders*. Routledge. (Original work published 1951)

Prüfer, J. (2016). Business Associations and Private Ordering. *The Journal of Law, Economics, and Organization*, *32*(2), 306–358. https://doi.org/10.1093/jleo/ewv017 Pyle, W. (2005). Contractual Disputes and the Channels for Inter-firm Communication. *Journal of Law, Economics and Organization*, 21(2), 547– 575. https://doi.org/10.1093/jleo/ewi014

Pyle, W. (2006b). Resolutions, recoveries and relationships: The evolution of payment disputes in Central and Eastern Europe. *Journal of Comparative Economics*, *34*(2), 317–337. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jce.2006.02.002

Roberts, J., & Dietrich, M. (1999). Conceptualizing Professionalism. American Journal of Economics and Sociology, 58(4), 977–998.

```
https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1536-7150.1999.tb03404.x
```

Rose, R. (1990). Institutionalizing professional political science in Europe: A dynamic model. *European Journal of Political Research*, *18*(6), 581–603. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1475-6765.1990.tb00249.x

Saitgalina, M., Zhao, T., Stebbins, R. A., & Smith, D. H. (2016). Participation in Trade and Business Associations. In D. H. Smith, R. A. Stebbins, J. Grotz, & J. Grotz (Eds.), *The* 

*Palgrave Handbook of Volunteering, Civic Participation, and Nonprofit Associations* (pp. 417–435). Palgrave Macmillan UK.

https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-137-26317-9\_20

Schmitter, P. C., & Streeck, W. (1999). *The Organization of Business Interests: Studying the associative action of business in advanced industrial societies* [MPIfG Discussion Paper 99/1]. (Original work published 1981)

Streeck, W., Grote, J., Schneider, V., & Visser, J. (2006). *Governing Interests: Business Associations Facing Internationalism*. Routledge.

Sukiassyan, G., & Nugent, J. B. (2011). Lobbying or Information Provision: Which Functions of Associations Matter Most for Member Performance? *Eastern European Economics*, 49(2), 30–63. https://doi.org/10.2753/EEE0012-8775490202

Williamson, O. E. (1979). Transaction-Cost Economics: The Governance of Contractual Relations. *The Journal of Law and Economics*, 22(2), 233–261. https://doi.org/10.1086/466942

Williamson, O. E. (2002). The Lens of Contract: Private Ordering. *The American Economic Review*, 92(2), 438–443.

# 6. List of own (or co-authored) publications related to the topic

### Journal articles

Molnár, G. T. (2019). A vállalkozói szerveződések szerepe a szerződéses kapcsolatok támogatásában. Egy magyar ágazat tanulságai. *Vezetéstudomány - Budapest Management Review*, 50(9), 66–80.
https://doi.org/10.14267/VEZTUD.2019.09.07
Molnár, G. T. (2020). What do business associations do? *Corvinus Journal of Sociology and Social Policy*, 11(1), 73–101.
https://doi.org/10.14267/CJSSP.2020.1.3
Molnár, G. T., & Ilonszki, G. (2021). Identity formation of the profession in a latecomer political science community. *European Political Science*, 20(1), 139–158. https://doi.org/10.1057/s41304-021-00318-w
Molnár, G. T. (2021). Változatok a szakmaiság intézményesítésére. A magyar logisztikaszakma szerveződéseinek rendszere. *Vezetéstudomány - Budapest Management Review*, 52 (8-9). pp. 78-93.
DOI: 10.14267/VEZTUD.2021.09.06

### Book chapters

Mike K., Boza I., & Molnár G. T. (2018). A vállalkozói szerveződések mint szerződéstámogató intézmények. Egy magyar vállalati felmérés tanulságai. In Valentiny P., Kiss F. L., Nagy C. I., & Berezvai Z., *Verseny és Szabályozás* 2017 (pp. 62–90). MTA KRTK Közgazdaság-tudományi Intézet. Molnár, G.T. (2022). Coping with a Closed and Politicized System: The Advisory Roles of Political Scientists in Hungary. In: Brans, M., Timmermans, A. (eds) *The Advisory Roles of Political Scientists in Europe*. Palgrave Macmillan, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-86005-9\_9